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From: Mark DOMINICK

To:

cc Joe BUFFONE National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Fund; EReauINEMN)

Subject: National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program - Bundaberg Flood Levee application - further information as requested
[SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

Date: Wednesday, 28 April 2021 10:33:22 AM

Attachments: image001.png
image003.png

RE National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program - request for further information on risks SECOFFICIAL.msg

OFFICIAL: Sensitive

Dear IR

As requested last week, please find attached further information on potential risks associated with the
Bundaberg Flood Levy East application under the National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program (NFMIP).

The attached document contains responses from the applicant (Queensland Reconstruction Authority - QRA) to a
request for further information on the impacts of the levee on properties upriver and on adjoining lands,
community attitudes towards the levee, and how the Levee fits into the Bundaberg 10 year Action Plan.

For reference, | will also send you (in a separate email) the full application for the Bundaberg Levy that was sent
to the Department by QRA on 12 Feb 2021 — the size limitation prevents me attaching it to this email.

Impacts of the levee on properties upriver and on adjoining lands

In its response to the question of whether the levy could increase the risk of flooding to adjoining lands, QRA
references an engineering report which assesses that the proposed Levee will not make flooding worse
elsewhere. QRA has also provided a fact sheet on the project (included in the attached email) which states the
following: The proposed levee has been designed to ensure that its construction will not make flooding worse
elsewhere. The hydraulic model of the Burnett River was used to address this very issue for a range of potential
levee options. The potential levees were modelled, and the change in flood level outside of the levee was
measured. In general, it is possible to displace water from areas like Bundaberg Creek and Kendall Flats but not
from areas like the Burnett River and the North Bundaberg floodplain.

The factsheet does caveat, however, that this would not be the case in a ‘rare but extreme’ flooding event in
which the levee is overtopped. On this point, the factsheet states: It is possible that in the future, a rare but
extreme flood may occur which would cause the levee to be overtopped. It is important that the community
understands this risk, and that there will be a management plan in place to respond to a rare overtopping
scenario should it occur..... Generally, it is impractical to build a levee high enough to completely eliminate the
possibility of overtopping. A risk-based approach is therefore required to balance the level of protection afforded
by a levee (i.e. minimising the chance of it overtopping) against the practicality and cost of its construction.

Community attitudes towards the levee

A mandatory requirement for applicants that is set out in the NFMIP Guidelines is community consultation. To
meet this requirement, QRA has referenced community consultations undertaken in 2016 and in 2018. QRA
advises that the overall outcome of these consultations was ‘positive’.

The consultations on the project appear to be comprehensive, and include correspondence sent in 2016 to
about 600 owners of properties in Bundaberg North encouraging property owners to participate in engagement
activities for the project. Community information meetings were also held, a dedicated website and information
hotline were established, and advertisements were placed in the local media. The consultation report from 2016
(included in the attached email), states that the Bundaberg Levee East proposal ‘was generally supported,
recognised that would have positive impact on businesses. Issues raised related to: impact on property access,
negative impacts on property values, potential to back up local drains, need for pumps and issues of ongoing
maintenance’.
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With respect to the need to acquire properties to build the levy, QRA advises that 4 lots of privately owned
undeveloped land will be required to be acquired along the levee alignment in east Bundaberg. All lots are
owned by one commercial entity. The landowner was consulted as part of levee alignment planning and at the
time of consultation raised no objections to the proposed alignment.

In addition to the information supplied by QRA, | note that a number of media reports note that there is some
opposition to the proposed Levee in the Bundaberg community. In particular:

e  An ABC article from yesterday (26 Apr 2021) states that ‘The Bundaberg community has not unanimously
supported the levee’, and that ‘Bundaberg North resident Walter Whitbread said he had collected
signatures from 4,000 people against the levee’.
https://www.abc.net.au/news/2021-04-26/bundaber
funding/100095864

e Anarticle from the ‘Bundaberg Today’ newspaper article from 16 April 2021 titled ‘Strong opposition to
Bundaberg East Flood Levee’ states that a ‘newly formed “Bundaberg Flood Protection Group” has been
created by concerned Bundaberg residents who want to see flood protection for those who are most at
risk of future flooding’. The group’s ‘elected President’ is quotes as saying that ‘the East Bundaberg
Levee poses significant construction risks’, and that the ‘levee also does very little for the residents of
North Bundaberg and other low lying suburbs who were heavily impacted by the 2013 floods’.
https://bundabergtoday.com.au/news/2021/04/16/strong-opposition-to-bundaberg-east-flood-levee

How the Levee fits into the Bundaberg 10 year Action Plan

You also asked for further clarification on how the proposed levy fits into the Bundaberg 10 year Action Plan, and
whether the levee could go ahead if the Floodway House Purchase Scheme project does not. QRA responded
with advice that the Bundaberg 10 year Action Plan (Options 1-4) are independent of each other. QRA also
advises that ‘the Floodway House Purchase Scheme identified in the Bundaberg Flood 10 year Action Plan (Option
4) is not contingent of the levee and is specific to properties in North Bundaberg on the opposite side of the river
to the proposed levee. This option was not well supported during community consultation and is subject to
further consideration.’

With respect to the assessment by the NFMIP panel of the Bundaberg Flood Levy East application, this was
undertaken on the information supplied by the applicant only. The panel did not review any material from
individuals or groups opposing the project. On balance, | think that QRA’s application reasonably reflects risks
and community attitudes. As the media reporting notes, however, there does appear to be some level of
community concern about the project, and it is open to the Minister to weigh whether these concerns, and the
risks which underpin them, have been sufficiently addressed in the proposal, in deciding on the application.

| trust that the information above covers off on your questions from last week. Please let me know if you would
like any further information. The information above hasn’t been cleared through DG EMA, but please let me
know if you would like us to formalise the above advice through a Ministerial Submission.

Regards
Mark

Mark Dominick

Assistant Secretary

Disaster Preparedness Branch

Emergency Management and Coordination Group
Department of Home Affairs

t: e 8. 22(1)(a)(i)

£: S22 @)@ homeaffairs.gov.au
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OFFICIAL: Sensitive

From: Mark DOMINICK

Sent: Thursday, 22 April 2021 12:22 PM

To: SH22() (@) (MM HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>; SH22ENIE)

>
Cc: HOMEAFFAIRS.Gov.AU>; SHCCMIENN

HOMEAEFFAIRS.GOV.AU>
Subject: RE: National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program - Bundaberg Flood Levee
application[SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL
Hi .

I've gone back to the Queensland Reconstruction Authority with a request for the additional information. Please
see this attached. | think what | have asked for covers off on those aspects we discussed yesterday, but if there
is anything else please let me know.

Once we have a response back from QRA, we’ll collate it with our own research and information on risks from
the original application and send it through to you.

Regards
Mark

Mark Dominick

Assistant Secretary

Disaster Preparedness Branch

Emergency Management and Coordination Group
Department of Home Affairs

18- 22(1)(@)i) 1, s. 22(1)(@)(i)

E:

homeaffairs.gov.au

OFFICIAL

From: SH22() @) @ HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AUS

Sent: Wednesday, 21 April 2021 3:31 PM

To: Mark DOMINICK homeaffairs.gov.au>; SHGEIMCUNIMN - h o meaffairs gov.au>

S22 EIN 2 homeaffairs gov.au>

Subject: Re: National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program - Bundaberg Flood Levee
application[SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

Hey Mark,

Thanks for this.

The Minister is after how all the projects fit together - ie the risks around the levy and whether and how
these other programs deal with that.

Thanks for your work on this.

Sent by Email+
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OFFICIAL

From: "Mark DOMINICK" _(L]homeaﬁ'airs.gov.au>

Date: Wednesday. 21 April 2021 at 12:43:29 pm

[SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

pear SIS

Following on from our conversation yesterday regarding the Bundaberg Flood Levee application, we went back
to the applicant to confirm whether any of the funding sought from the Commonwealth would be used for any
other/ancillary project. In particular, confirmation was sought on whether the application only relates to the
construction of the flood mitigation aspects of the Bundaberg Flood Levy, and not the other projects outlined in
the Bundaberg 10 year Action Plan (i.e. the Bundaberg North Evacuation Routes, the Upper Floodplain
Evacuation Improvements, and the Floodway House Purchase Scheme).

As per the response below, the Queensland Reconstruction Authority has advised that the requested funding
commitment only relates to the Bundaberg East Levee project.

Please let me know if you would like any further information.

Regards
Mark

Mark Dominick

Assistant Secretary

Disaster Preparedness Branch

Emergency Management and Coordination Group
Department of Home Affairs
t 8. 22(1)(@)(i)

£: SHRREENI 2 homeaffairs.gov.au

OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL

From: SR .. 2.c\d 5oy 21>

Sent: Tuesday, 20 April 2021 5:00 PM

To: SR22(MEN Mo homeaffairs.gov.au>

cc: S22 @ 2 ora.ald.gov.au>; National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure

Fund <national.flood.mitigation@homeaffairs.gov.au>

Subject: RE: National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program - request for further information on application
[SEC=OFFICIAL]
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Good afternoon-

Thank you for your email.
We can confirm that the requested funding commitment only relates to the Bundaberg East Levee project.
Please let me know if you require anything further.

Regards

General Manager
Resilience
Queensland Reconstruction Authority

M s. 22(1)(@)(i)
Level 11, 400 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000
PO Box 15428, City East QLD 4002

www.qra.qld.gov.au
Connect with us via social media — Eacebook Linkedin YouTube

cid:image002.jpg@01D73B61.2F6ABDBO

From:_)homeaffairs.gov.au]

Sent: Tuesday, 20 April 2021 4:41 PM

To:_@@ﬁmx National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Fund
<national.flood.mitigation @homeaffairs.gov.au>

‘hgmeaﬁaimgm.am
Subject: RE: National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program - request for further information on application
[SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL
i
As discussed on the phone, we have a further question regarding the Bundaberg Flood Levee.

Could you please confirm whether any Commonwealth funding sought under the National Flood Mitigation
Infrastructure Program will be used for any other/ancillary project. In particular, please confirm whether the
application only relates to the construction of the flood mitigation aspects of the Bundaberg Flood Levy and not
the other projects outlined in the Bundaberg 10 year Action Plan (i.e. the Bundaberg North Evacuation Routes,
the Upper Floodplain Evacuation Improvements, and the Floodway House Purchase Scheme).

Grateful for your response by 9.30am tomorrow if possible.

Please contact_hould you have any questions.



FOI request FA 21/09/00514 - Document 1

Kind regards,

National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program
Emergency Management and Coordination
Department of Home Affairs

national.flood.mitigation@homeaffairs.gov.au

OFFICIAL

From: SH22(D) @I 0 2.0ld cov.au>

Sent: Thursday, 25 March 2021 1:14 PM
To: National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Fund <national.flood.mitigation@homeaffairs.gov.au>

Cc: homeaffairs.gov.au>; homeaffairs.gov.au>;
ra.gld.gov.au>

Subject: RE: National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program - request for further information on application
[SEC=OFFICIAL]

Good afternoon,
Thank you for your email. Responses are provided below

Project Item requiring clarification Response
Project 1: Bundaberg 1. Application indicates that 1. The project includes some proposed
Flood Levee some aspects of the project amenity enhancements to the levee
relates other purposes such structure which are considered essential
as café and entertainment for the urban setting of this levee and
facilities. What aspects of related community benefit. Whilst there
the project does the funding is provision in the levee design for a
request cover? future lettable commercial area under
2. Does requested funding the observation deck on the levee, there
request covers all aspects of are no café or entertainment setup or fit-
the project, would out cost inclusions in the funding
Queensland be open to requested.
partial funding for the levee 2. The Queensland Government is seeking a
component? 50% co-contribution from the
Commonwealth, of currently identified
construction related costs for this
important flood mitigation project.
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Please advise if you have any further questions.
Regards

General Manager
Resilience
Queensland Reconstruction Authority

P—@w
M

Level 11, 400 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000

PO Box 15428, City East QLD 4002

www.qgra.gld.gov.au

Connect with us via social media — Facebook Linkedin YouTube

cid:image002.png@01D5FBAF.6504A730

From: National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Fund [mailto:national.flood.mitigation@homeaffairs.gov.au]
Sent: Friday, 19 March 2021 2:44 PM

To: SH22(W)(@)[H

ce:s- 2@

Subject: National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program - request for further information on application
[SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

Good afternoon -

Thank you for providing the applications to the National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program (NFIMP). We
appreciate the significant investment of time and effort that you have already devoted to this process, including
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any clarification provided following the initial project review process.

The Program Review Panel (the panel) is currently in the process of assessing applications for funding under the
NFMIP.

In accordance with clause 6.2.3 of the January 2021 Program Guidelines (attached) the panel is responsible for
substantiating claims made in applications. In order to meet their responsibilities and assist the panel to make its
recommendations, the panel have requested some further information or clarification in relation to a number of
projects.

The specific questions the panel have are listed in the table below:

Project Item requiring clarification Response

Project 1: Bundaberg Flood Levee | Application indicates that some
aspects of the project relates other
purposes such as café and
entertainment facilities. What
aspects of the project does the
funding request cover?

Does requested funding request
covers all aspects of the project,
would Queensland be open to
partial funding for the levee
component?

This opportunity to provide additional information will allow the panel to make robust, evidence based
recommendations in accordance with the Emergency Response Fund Guidelines and ensure that Department
meets its probity responsibilities under clause 6.6 of the attached guidelines.

Please contact _Director EMA Strategy, (cc’d) should you have any questions or concerns regarding
the above.

Thank you for your assistance.

Kind regards,

National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program
Emergency Management and Coordination
Department of Home Affairs

national.flood.mitigation @homeaffairs.gov.au

OFFICIAL

OFFICIAL

Important Notice: The content of this email is intended only for use by the individual or entity to whom it is
addressed. If you have received this email by mistake, please advise the sender and delete the message and
attachments immediately. This email, including attachments, may contain confidential, sensitive, legally
privileged and/or copyright information.

Any review, retransmission, dissemination or other use of this information by persons or entities other than the
intended recipient is prohibited. The Department of Home Affairs and ABF respect your privacy and have

obligations under the Privacy Act 1988.

Unsolicited commercial emails MUST NOT be sent to the originator of this email.
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This E-Mail is intended only for the addressee. Its use is limited to that intended by the author at the time and it is not to be distributed
without the author's consent. Unless otherwise stated, the State of Queensland accepts no liability for the contents of this E-Mail except
where subsequently confirmed in writing. The opinions expressed in this E-Mail are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the
views of the State of Queensland. This E-Mail is confidential and may be subject to a claim of legal privilege.

If you have received this E-Mail in error, please notify the author and delete this message immediately.

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
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From:
To: Mark DOMINICK
Cc: _ National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Fund; _
Subject: RE: National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program - request for further information on risks [SEC=OFFICIAL]
Date: Friday, 23 April 2021 12:58:29 PM
Attachments: image001.png
image003.png
image004.jpg

Bundaberg action plan factsheet FAQs.pdf
Bundaberg flood protection study community engagement report.pdf

Good afternoon Mark

In response to the request for further information on the application to the National Flood Mitigation
Infrastructure Program for the Bundaberg Levee project, Queensland provides the following responses and
attached community consultation summary document. Additionally, the detailed Bundaberg Levee business case
and supporting information was provided directly to the Deputy Prime Minister by the Queensland Deputy
Premier, in correspondence dated 15 March 2021. The detailed business case is consistent with Infrastructure
Australia requirements.

Queensland would be pleased to provide any further technical information required to consider the Bundaberg
Levee application and is available to discuss the responses below.

1.  Potential impact from the levee on the broader river system. In particular, are you able to please
provide information on the impacts of the levee on properties upriver and on lands adjoining the proposed
levee. Will the proposed levee create greater flood risks in areas not protected by the levee? If so can you
please provide details.

° Potential impacts from the levee placement were assessed as part of flood modelling and associated
studies conducted by Jacobs. The government engaged Jacobs, an internationally recognised
engineering firm, to undertake an independent review of previous flood studies, floodplain risk
management plans and the community consultation process. A detailed flood study was prepared to
support identification of the levee alignment.

° The proposed levee has been designed to ensure that its construction will not make flooding worse
elsewhere, including on properties not protected by it or on properties upriver from the levee.

° Further information on this matter can be found in Fact Sheet — Bundaberg East Levee (refer
attachment).

2. Summary of the feedback received in community consultations on the project , and community
attitudes towards the levee. How many properties will be impacted by a buyback, have the property owners
been consulted, and are there sections of the community who oppose the project as currently designed. If so,
can we please understand the basis of any concerns.

° A summary of community feedback on 2016 engagement is contained in the consultation report —
Bundaberg Flood Protection Study — Stage 2 Consultation Report (refer attachment).

° Further engagement was undertaken in June 2018. The majority of people who provided feedback
during this community engagement on the levee reported positive feedback on the proposed levee
design, alignment and concept.

° To enable the construction of the levee, 4 lots of privately owned undeveloped land will be required to
be acquired along the levee alighment in east Bundaberg. All lots are owned by one commercial
entity. The landowner was consulted as part of levee alignment planning and at the time of
consultation raised no objections to the proposed alignment.

° The Floodway House Purchase Scheme identified in the Bundaberg Flood 10 year Action Plan (Option
4) is not contingent of the levee and is specific to properties in North Bundaberg on the opposite side

10
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of the river to the proposed levee. This option was not well supported during community consultation
and is subject to further consideration.

3. Funding commitment only relates to the Bundaberg East Levee project - could we please receive an
explanation of how the Levee and other projects outlined in the Bundaberg 10 year Action Plan are linked or
interdependent. In particular, are the Bundaberg North Evacuation Routes, Upper Floodplain Evacuation
Improvements, and the Floodway House Purchase Scheme project enabling projects for the Levee, or are they
completely separate projects. For example, could the Levee go ahead if the Floodway House Purchase
Scheme project does not?

o Of all of the Bundaberg Flood Action Plan options the Bundaberg levee is the most beneficial in
protecting and mitigating flood impacts.

° The Bundaberg 10 year Action Plan Options 1-4 are independent of each other.

o The options were developed from an original list of 11 options and involved extensive community
input to their review and assessment.

° Initial Upper Floodplain Evacuation Route improvements were completed in conjunction with
Bundaberg Regional Council in 2019, with State funding of S1million.

Please advise if you have any further questions.

Regards

General Manager
Resilience
. Queensland Reconstruction Authority

P
M -
Level 11, 400 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000

PO Box 15428, City East QLD 4002
www gra gld gov.au

Connect with us via social media — Facebook Linkedin YouTube

cid:image002.png@01D5FBAF.6504A730

From: Mark DOMINICK [mailto:_@homeaffairs.gov.au]
Sent: Wednesday, 21 April 2021 5:45 PM

To: gra.qld.gov.au>

Cc: gra.gld.gov.au>; National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure
Fund <national.flood.mitigation@homeaffairs.gov.au>

Subject: National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program - request for further information on risks
[SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL
Dear -

11
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Thank you for the additional information provided yesterday regarding the Bundaberg East Levee project. As
discussed earlier today, we would like to request further information pertaining to potential risks with the
project.

Firstly, could we please request specific information on the impact that the levee will have on the broader river
system. In particular, are you able to please provide information on the impacts of the levee on properties
upriver and on lands adjoining the proposed levee. Will the proposed levee create greater flood risks in areas
not protected by the levee? If so can you please provide details.

Secondly, could we please request a summary of the feedback received in community consultations on the
project, and community attitudes towards the levee. How many properties will be impacted by a buyback, have
the property owners been consulted, and are there sections of the community who oppose the project as
currently designed. If so, can we please understand the basis of any concerns.

Thirdly, | note your response below that the requested funding commitment only relates to the Bundaberg East
Levee project, however could we please receive an explanation of how the Levee and other projects outlined in
the Bundaberg 10 year Action Plan are linked or interdependent.

In particular, are the Bundaberg North Evacuation Routes, Upper Floodplain Evacuation Improvements, and the
Floodway House Purchase Scheme project enabling projects for the Levee, or are they completely separate
projects. For example, could the Levee go ahead if the Floodway House Purchase Scheme project does not?

Thank you for your assistance and responsiveness as we work through the application process, its greatly
appreciated.

Best regards
Mark

Mark Dominick

Assistant Secretary

Disaster Preparedness Branch

Emergency Management and Coordination Group
Department of Home Affairs

&8 22(1)(@)(i) 11- 8. 22(1)(@)(i)

E: homeaffairs.gov.au

12
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From: Mark DOMINICK

To:

Cc: ; ; National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure
Eund;

Subject: For reference - Full application - Bundaberg Flood Levee East [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

Date: Wednesday, 28 April 2021 10:41:27 AM

Attachments: ee Applicati ationa

OFFICIAL: Sensitive

Hi again-

Further to my previous email, please find attached the full application for the Bundaberg Levy
that was sent to the Department by QRA on 12 Feb 2021 for your reference.

Regards
Mark

Mark Dominick

Assistant Secretary

Disaster Preparedness Branch

Emergency Management and Coordination Group
Department of Home Affairs

18- 22(1)(@)([) 11/s. 22(1)(@)(i)
E:_ﬁ)homeaf‘fairs.gov.au

OFFICIAL: Sensitive

17
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From:
To: National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Fund
Subject: Queensland Applications for National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program - Email 1 of 22 - Bundaberg East Levee
Date: Friday, 12 February 2021 3:06:37 PM
Attachments: image001.png
image002.png
Application - National Fl f

Attachment 1 - Images of Flood Modelling - Bundaberg East Levee.pdf
Attachment 2 - Bundaberg Flood Levee Design JDA Presentation.pdf
MBN21-11 - Letter to Hon David Littlepr MP.PDF

NFMIP Application Cover Sheet.pdf

Att 1 - List of applications - National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure ....docx

Good afternoon,
Please find attached:
e Queensland’s application cover sheet;
e A copy of the relevant Queensland Minister’s endorsement of Queensland’s applications; and
e An application from Queensland for the National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program.
Please note that each application will be sent as a separate email. May | ask that you please confirm via return
email that you have received all 22 emails.
Regards

General Manager
Resilience
Queensland Reconstruction Authority

p SH22(L) @I 2 0ld govau

m S- 22(1)(a)(i)

Level 11, 400 George Street, Brisbane QLD 4000

PO Box 15428, City East QLD 4002

www.gra.qgld.gov.au

Connect with us via social media — Facebook Linkedin YouTube

cid:image002.png@01D7008A.E7C20CEQ

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
Project Application Form

This project application form is to be completed for each project that seeks funding from the National Flood Mitigation
Infrastructure Program.

In order for this application to be considered eligible, all sections must be completed, with the finalised application
attached to the Application Covering Sheet, prepared by the relevant state or territory government.

Grey instructional text should be deleted prior to submission.

Part 1B — Application Overview

State/territory Queensland

Project name Bundaberg Flood Levee
Will this project be delivered by a third party, | X Yes

such as a commercial service provider or ] No

through a local government?
Name of the third party or local government | The Queensland Department of State Development, Infrastructure,
Local Government and Planning (DSDILGP) is leading the business
case/funding identification phase of the project.

Lead agency responsibility for delivery phase of the project will be
determined subject to securing funding for project construction.

Bundaberg Regional Council has been consulted about and is
supportive of project.

State/Territory Contact officer
General Manager, Resilience
Queensland Reconstruction Authority
Ph:s. 22(1)(@)(ii)

Email: B22(0@)M)o gra.qld.gov.au

Part 2B — Project Overview
Will this project result in the construction of a | [X] Yes
new asset? ] No

If yes, where will this asset be located The Bundaberg Flood Levee will be located within the Bundaberg
local government area. The levee will run parallel to the southern
bank of the Burnett River, across Bundaberg Creek along Quay
Street, in central Bundaberg.

Will this project result in the improvement of | [] Yes

an existing asset? X No
If yes, where is this asset located? N/A
If yes, provide an overview of the works N/A

Part 3B — Existing Infrastructure

Has the asset ever been impacted by a [ Yes
natural disaster? X No
If yes, provide details of the event In January 2013, ex-Tropical Cyclone Oswald produced extreme

rainfall and flooding across Queensland with some of the most
severe impacts in the Bundaberg region. Bundaberg City
experienced its largest flood on record. North Bundaberg and other

Page@ of 6



low-lying areas of the city were affected, along with numerous

coastal and rural communities along the Burnett River and other
river and creek systems across the Bundaberg region.

Approximately 2,400 properties were destroyed or damaged, 7,000
people were evacuated and 600 businesses were damaged.

This devastation brought about the need to implement effective
long-term flood mitigation solutions.

Following this event, Bundaberg Regional Council and the
Queensland Government have been working with the community
and independent experts to identify potential works that will
provide flood mitigation solutions for the people of Bundaberg, their
homes, businesses and the local economy.

Has financial assistance, such as that [ Yes

available under the Disaster Recovery X No

Funding Arrangements, ever been received
for this asset?

If yes, please provide details No funding has been received under the DRFA.

The Bundaberg 10-year Action Plan was launched in June 2017 with
a commitment of $4 million to further develop the engineering
concepts, costings and planning for major flood mitigation works in
the Bundaberg region.

The Queensland Government has committed $42.5 million towards
the construction of the Bundaberg Flood Levee.

Has financial assistance previously been, oris | [] Yes

currently being, provided through X No

Commonwealth, state/territory or other
initiatives to support this asset?

Page28 of 6
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Part 4B — Detailed project overview
Detailed project description The Bundaberg Flood Levee will involve the construction of a levee
consisting of two main segments covering about 1.7km:

1. The City Alignment is approximately 1,045m long and
generally extends along the northern edge of Quay Street
from the intersection of Toonburra Street across Saltwater
Creek to the intersection of Scotland Street. The alignment
then follows Scotland Street to the intersection of Cran
Street.

2. The Sugar Mill Alignment is approximately 680m long and
crosses Distillery Creek. It extends from the intersection of
Cran Street and Scotland Street and runs east along Cran
Street and parallel to the river bank until it terminates north
of the sugar mill.

The key feature of the project is a concrete floodwall, which will
range in height (depending on geography and hydrology) between
approximately 0.4m and 2m.

The floodwall will protect against all floods on record. This would be
complemented by flood gates and a pump station across Bundaberg
Creek that would be closed in the event of an emerging flood event
in order to protect assets behind the levee.

Additional architectural design features will also be included to
facilitate recreational use and other amenity values in the vicinity of
the levee. At certain points (for example, Scotland Street crossing)
vehicle access gates, which can be closed in the event of a flood, will
ensure access across the levee is maintained for local residents.
Why is this project required? Construction of the levee will reduce the risk and impact of flood
events and mitigate flooding for over 600 buildings and increase
flood protection, mitigate damage, and protect the Bundaberg East
area from a 100-year average recurrence interval design flood event.

The primary objectives which drive the need for flood mitigation are:
e reduced flood risk to life and reduced flood impacts on
people
e reduced flood risk to property
e to achieve a balanced investment approach that considers
social, economic and environmental issues, long-term
reduction in flood risk, and adaptable levels of protection.

Flood modelling of the anticipated impacts of the construction of the
Bundaberg Flood Levee (Attachment 1) and a design overview of the
levee (Attachment 2) are attached to the application.

Further information related to the design, construction and benefits
of the levee can be provided.

Are documents attached to provide evidence | [X Yes

of this need? ] No
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What are the proposed outcomes for this
project?

Geotechnical testing and the under-seepage modelling has
concluded a flood prevention wall is the most viable and effective
solution for flood protection in Bundaberg.

The key anticipated benefits of the Bundaberg Flood Levee are
primarily reductions in expected future costs of flooding and
additional amenity enhancements to the area.

In particular, construction of the levee is expected to:
e reduce the risk and impact of flood events and mitigate
flooding for over 600 buildings in all but the worst floods
e increase flood protection, mitigate damage and protect the
Bundaberg East area from a 100-year average recurrence
interval design flood event.

What is the proposed delivery timeframe for
this project?

Proposed delivery timeframes for the project are:

e 2020-21 —finalisation of geotechnical investigations;
surveying and essential services mapping; preparations of
detail design specification; and tender documentation.

e 2021-22 to 2022-23 project delivery.

Part 5B — Financial

What is the estimated cost for this project? $85 million
Will a co-contribution be provided? X Yes
] No

If yes, what is the value of the co-
contribution?

The Queensland Government has committed $42.5 million towards
the project and is seeking a 50 per cent funding contribution to the
cost of the Bundaberg Flood Levee from the Commonwealth
Government.

If yes, who is providing the co-contribution?

Queensland Government

Part 6B — Community Consultation

Has community consultation been
undertaken prior to the submission of this
application?

X Yes
[J No

If yes, please provide details of this
consultation

Significant community consultation and engagement has occurred
during the development of the Bundaberg Flood Levee proposal and
the associated development of the Bundaberg 10-year Action Plan.

Commencing in 2016, concept designs were presented to local and
state government agencies for review, and information sessions
were held for the community to engage with the project, view the
concept designs and provide feedback.

In June 2017, the Queensland Government provided funding of

$4 million for further engagement with community and industry
specialists to refine and progress flood mitigation solutions. This
work is now complete and resulted in the selection of the Bundaberg
Flood Levee as the preferred option. There is a high expectation
among community that the Bundaberg Flood Levee project will
proceed to construction.

Pagezg of 6
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Further information about consultation undertaken can be provided,
upon request.

Are documents attached to provide evidence | [] ves

of this consultation? X No
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Figure 1 Do nothing

Construct levee
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Hon Steven Miles MP
Deputy Premier
(2R Minister for State Development, Infrastructure,

Queensland

Government Local Government and Planning
1 William Street
Brisbane Queensland 4000
: PO Box 15009
Our ref: MBN21/11 City East Queensland 4002

Telephone +617 3719 7100
Email deputy.premier@ministerial.qld.gov.au
Website www.dsdilgp.qld.gov.au

1 ? F‘EB 2921 ABN 65 959 415 158

The Honourable David Littleproud MP
Minister for Agriculture, Drought and Emergency Management

minister.Iittleproud(;@-s\we.gov.au

Qowr

Dear MiniAter

Thank you for your letter of 22 December 2020 to the Honourable Mark Ryan MP, Queensland
Minister for Police and Corrective Services and Fire and Emergency Services inviting the
Queensland Government to submit applications for the $50 million National Flood Mitigation
Infrastructure Program (the program).

As noted in my letter of 5 February 2021, as the Minister responsible for the Queensland
Reconstruction Authority (QRA) and Minister for Local Government, | will endorse applications on
behalf of the Queensland Government. The Honourable Mark Ryan MP, Minister for Police and
Corrective Services and Fire and Emergency Services has been copied into this letter.

The Queensland Government appreciates the opportunity to apply for funding under the program.
As you know, Queensland has a strong commitment to flood risk reduction and this program
provides an opportunity to strengthen resilience across Queensland communities.

| am pleased to endorse the submission of 20 applications under the program, which will be sent
by QRA to Emergency Management Australia. A summary of Queensland’s applications is

enclosed.

| note the updated guidelines provided to Queensland on 1 February 2021 require projects to be
submitted in order of priority. In Queensland, with its level of exposure to multiple disaster events,
projects that help reduce flood risk and keep people safe are of equal importance to the
communities which submitted them.

However, in light of the Australian Government’s request for prioritisation, and while hoping you
will consider all of the submissions as worthy of funding, Queensland has classified five of the

projects as high priority, based on critical impact to people and public safety.

Given the number of applications seeking funding for sensible, practical and much needed
projects to help protect communities from flooding, | also encourage you to consider allocating
the full $100 million towards the program, as originally promised had the program opened on time
in 2019-20.
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| look forward to further advice on the outcome of your assessment. If you require any further
information regarding this matter, please contact_Chief of Staff in my office,

by email at ﬁ@ministerial.qld.gov.au or by telephone on

Yours sincerely

7

/
% =

STEVEN MILES MP

DEPUTY PREMIER

Minister for State Development, Infrastructure,
Local Government and Planning

Enc

GC: The Honourable Mark Ryan MP
Minister for Police and Corrective Services and
Fire and Emergency Services
police@ministerial.qld.gov.au

Page 2bf 2



Australian Government

Department of Home Affairs

National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program
Application Covering Sheet

Email completed application forms to national.flood.mitigation@homeaffairs.gov.au

Part 1A — Applicant Information

State/territory Queensland
Organisation/Department Queensland Reconstruction Authority

Contact Officer s. 22(1)(a)(ii)

General Manager Resilience

ueensland Reconstruction Authority
ra.gld.gov.au

Part 2A — Submission overview

Number of applications submitted 20
Total value of bids submitted $127,364,901
Name of applications submitted e Bundaberg Levee

Are these applications eligible for funding as | [yes
per the criteria outlined in the Program ] No
Guidelines?

Page 10of 2
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Order of prioritisation

Part 3A — Prioritisation
Queensland has categorised five of the projects as high priority:
e Bundaberg Levee

Basis for this prioritisation

All of the projects submitted under the program have been identified
by their communities as important projects to mitigate flood risk and
as such cannot be prioritised over one another.

Queensland has categorised five of the projects as high priority given

their critical impact to mitigating risk and increasing public safety.

Minister’s Name

Part 4A — Minister’s clearance

The Hon Dr Steven Miles MP

Title

Deputy Premier and Minister for State Development, Infrastructure,
Local Government and Planning

Date of clearance

12 February 2021

Signature

See attached letter from Deputy Premier Miles to Minister Littleproud

Minister’s Office contact

ministerial.qld.gov.au

Page 2 of 2
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Attachment1

National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program - Queensland applications

Location (LGA) | Project description m

Bundaberg
Regional
Council
(Department
of State
Development,
Infrastructure,
Local
Government
and Planning

Bundaberg Levee $42,500,000
Constructionof a levee consisting of two main segments coveringabout 1.7

kilometres. The key feature of the projectis a concrete floodwall, which will protect

againstall floods on record. This would be complemented by flood gates and a pump

stationacross BundabergCreek that would be closedin the event of an emerging

flood eventin orderto protect assets behind the levee. It will mitigate flood impacts

for over 600 buildings. The Queensland Government has committed $42.5 million

towards the projectandis seekinga 50 per cent funding contributionfromthe

Australian Government (total project value $85 million).
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National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program

Queensland Applications

Thank you for the opportunity to provide additional information to support Queensland’s applications under the
National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program.

The following elements have been addressed:

1. Prioritisation
2. Consultation (refer Table 1)

3. Purpose and Outcomes (refer Table 1)
4. Other project clarification

1 — Prioritisation

Queensland has prioritised National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program projects using the Queensland
Disaster Resilience and Mitigation Investment Framework, which recognises national and international disaster risk
reduction, mitigation and adaptation approaches, including the Sendai Framework for Disaster Risk Reduction and

the National Risk Reduction Framework and relevant implementation materials such as the Guidance for Strategic
Decisions on Climate and Disaster Risk (Guidance on Prioritisation).

The key considerations from the Framework are:

e Issue identification

e Alignment to broader government policy
o Cost-benefit analysis

e Evidence base

e Community benefits realisation

e Collaboration

e Innovation.

Below is Queensland’s prioritised list:

1. Bundaberg Levee

Page 1 of 12
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Background

In 2019, the Queensland Reconstruction Authority (QRA), in consultation with a range of government and industry
stakeholders, developed the Queensland Disaster Resilience and Mitigation Investment Framework (the

Framework). The Framework provides guidance on effective investment decision-making and prioritisation to
support disaster resilience and mitigation across Queensland.

The Framework embraces the guiding principles of the Queensland Strategy for Disaster Resilience 2017
(QSDR) and enables the four QSDR objectives:

Queenslanders understand their disaster risk

Strengthened disaster risk management

Queenslanders are invested in disaster risk reduction

There is continuous improvement in disaster preparedness, response and recovery.

PN~

Page 2 of 12
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Table 1: Additions for Consultation; and Purpose and Outcomes

Location
(LGA)and
Project
description

Elements for clarification: Consultation; and Purpose and Outcomes

Project

Consultation
(clause 5.5)

Purpose and Outcomes
(clause 2.3)

ALL
PROJECTS

It is imperative to note that some projects do
not lend themselves to community consultation
(e.g. culvert upgrades, bitumen seal), howe\er,
all projects have been identified as priorities by
the relevant council to the Queensland
Government, through QRA.

In relation to the below outcome “reduction in
the expected future eligible expenditure
under the Disaster Recovery Funding
Arrangements 2018”, the below information
can be applied to all projects:

Investment in mitigation has proven
to reduce risk to the community and
reduce reconstruction costs from
future events. Mitigation projects
have resulted in communities being
less wilnerable to flooding events,
assets functioning sooner and
expenditure under the DRFA
reduced for future events. An
upfront investment of approximately
$90 million through the Queensland
Betterment Fund to assets that have
been impacted by subsequent
events has seen more than $145
million in awided reconstruction
costs under the DRFA, as well as
improvements to community
connectedness, with some assets
that previously took months to retum
to functionality returning as soon as
waters receded.

Bundaberg
Regional
Councill

Bundaberg
Levee

Addition:

The following links to factsheets and media
articles demonstrate the degree of public
consultation that has occurred over several
years with respect to this project:

https://dilgpprd.blob.core.windows.net/general/
bundaberg-action-plan-the-story-so-far. pdf

https://www.bundabergnow.com/2020/09/28/co
mmunity-calls-for-flood-levee/

https://www.bundabergnow.com/2020/09/25/lo
od-protection-bundaberg-regional-council-
election-priority/

https://bundabergactionplan.initiatives.qld.gov.
au/

Addition:

This application will support Bundaberg
mitigate its priority flood risk, and reduce the
impact of flood events.

The Bundaberg Levee will result in:

reduction in the impact of future
floods on Bundaberg;

reduction in the expected future
eligible expenditure under the
Disaster Recovery Funding
Arrangements 2018;

addressing household insurance
affordability as a result of the
construction of the flood mitigation
infrastructure; and

ancillary to the abowe, local job
creation.

Page 3 of 12
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Location
(ngf)\j)eacr:d Elements for clarification: Consultation; and Purpose and Outcomes
description _ _ _
- Consultation Purpose and Outcomes
SUEEE (clause 5.5) (clause 2.3)

https://dsdmipprd.blob.core.windows.net/gener

al/bundaberg action plan factsheet-fags.pdf

In its 2021-22 Pre-Budget Submission to the
Commonwealth, Suncorp Group Limited
(Suncorp) argued that we must build more
resilient communities through greater
disaster mitigation in the face of climate
impacts and a growing population settling in
exposed regions. Suncorp highlighted the
Bundaberg East flood levee as a project of
significance.

It is expected insurance premiums may be
reduced for up to 600 properties in
Bundaberg East that will be protected by the
levee. In Queensland, flood mitigation
investments in Roma and St George have
shown a net benefit of $64.7 million and
$25.7 million, respectively, over the next 50
years, and hawe led to insurance premiums
in these communities lowered by amounts
exceeding 50 per cent, and in some cases 90
per cent (Financial Review, Apr 23, 2017).

Bundaberg has suffered significant flood
impacts in the past from the Burnett River.
The last flood event occurred in 2013 with an
insured loss of $987 million, the majority of
which was centred on Bundaberg.

Flooding is considered relevant in 10,376
building policies in Bundaberg where the
median premium is $1307.

Measures to reduce the flood frequency or
flood depth for exposed residents would
assist to compress premiums. Bundaberg
Regional Council (BRC), in concert with the
Queensland Government, has deweloped a
comprehensive 10yr Action Plan to reduce
flood risk.

The plan includes permanent mitigation
works to protect targeted areas in the
catchment. Removing high flood risks for
residents could resultin an average premium
reduction of $349 (27%) for those residents
(Insurance Council of Australia, Mitigation
and Policy-in-Force Analysis, REPORT
20/12/19).

Page 4 of 12
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From: s. 22(1)(a)(i) -

To: Mark DOMINICK

Cc: Joe BUFFONE; Hayley PETRIE; Kaylene ZAKHAROFF; Ereni WEBER; National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure
Fund;

Subject: RE: For reference - Full application - Bundaberg Flood Levee East [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]

Date: Wednesday, 28 April 2021 1:17:21 PM

OFFICIAL: Sensitive

Hi there Mark,
Thanks for all the attached info and for your earlier email.
We would appreciate a brief that covers:
e The process the Intergovernmental panel went through in their selection process — ie
was there further analysis on the information provided by the state governments?
e Adetailed section on the risks and sensitivities
e An expansion on the benefits paragraph that was included in the table — unlocked
economic potential and “had community support”. Is there a separate evaluation or
assessment from the Initergovernmental Panel?
e How the levee fits in with the other State Government mitigation plans for Bundaberg
We would appreciate by 3pm Friday please.
Thanks again!

Chief of Staff

Office of the Hon David Littleproud MP

Minister for Agriculture, Drought, and Emergency Management
MG.64, Parliament House, Canberra

P M. 22(1)(@)(ii)
E: homeaffairs.gov.au

OFFICIAL: Sensitive

From: Mark DOMINICK -z)homeaffairs.gov.au>

Sent: Wednesday, 28 April 2021 10:41 AM

To: SH22(D) @) ) INNNG HOMEAFFAIRS.GOV.AU>

Cc: Joe BUFFONE _@homeaffairs.gov.au>;_

SR22(M)@)([)}o homeaffairs.gov.au>; SI22E@@GIIN

S22 @) homeaffairs.gov.au>; BIZ2E@@HIIIII @ homeaffairs.gov.aus;

National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Fund <national.flood.mitigation@homeaffairs.gov.au>;

SR22(DEIINN homeaffairs.gov.au>; SH22(L) (@)
SR22(M) @) (I @homeaffairs.gov.au>

Subject: For reference - Full application - Bundaberg Flood Levee East [SEC=OFFICIAL:Sensitive]
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OFFICIAL: Sensitive
Hi again -

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

+ 8- 22(M)(@)0) 1v-s. 22(1)(@)(0)
E:_@homeaffairs.gov.au

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
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OFFICIAL: Sensitive

Background Brief
. Australian Government

Department of Home Affairs For information

PDMS Number: MB21-000558

To: Minister for Agriculture, Droughtand Emergency Management
Subject: National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program—Bundaberg Flood Levee
Application

Your office requested additional details relating to Queensland’s application for funding from the
National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program (the Program) for the Bundaberg Flood Levee.

Background

1. On 12 April 2021, the Department’s recommendations under the Program, funded through the
finalised and lodged with your office for decision. Attachment A

2. The two funding options recommended by the Director General of Emergency Management
Australia (EMA)include funding for a component of the cost of the Bundaberg Flood Levee (the
levee). The levee wasidentified by the Queensland Government as Queensland’s priority
application.

3. The Director General’srecommendation followed the advice from the intergovernmental
Program Review Panel (the Panel) that assessed the project as a highly impactful flood
mitigation infrastructure project in accordance with the Program’s Guidelines. The levee project
received the highest rated score nationally for all projects submitted to the Program.

4. The project involves construction of a 1.7 kilometre concrete floodwall (built to a flood level
equivalent of that experienced in 2013) to protect Bundaberg East. The project also includes
construction of flood gatesand a pump station across Bundaberg Creek that would be closed
prior to or during an emerging flood event to protect assets behind the levee. The design
includes recreational use and other amenities. However, Queensland has confirmed that
Commonwealth funding would not be used for the non-flood mitigation elements of the project.

5. The levee has been developed as part of a 10-Year Action Plan. The Plan identifies, scopes and
assesses a package of hard infrastructure and other initiatives to enhance Bundaberg’sresilience
to flood. This has included several technical engineering studies, flood risk assessments, and
substantial community consultation.

6. Following the Department’s submission of its recommendations for the Program, additional
information wassought from Queensland about the levee in line with a request from your office.
This information, provided to your office on Wednesday, 28 April 2021, is at Attachment B.

7. The Panel has not been reconvened to undertake any further assessment of the levee project in
light of the additional information.

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
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OFFICIAL: Sensitive

Key Issues

Application Review Process

8.
9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

The assessment criteria for the Program were outlined in the Program Guidelines.
Each panel member assessed projects using the applications and supporting documents against
the Guidelines and from the perspective of their agency’sresponsibilities. Further analysis was
also considered, including information searches regarding:
e past natural disaster events, disaster impacts, and notifications and claims under the
Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangements (DRFA) (and its predecessor);
e previous applications to Government for funding from other relevant programs for the
specific project;
e evidence of community consultation and any issues that may have been publicly raised
of reported; or
o eligibility for funding through other relevant Government programs, primarily
infrastructure, disaster risk reduction and/or recovery programs.
Requests for further information were collated from the Panel’s assessments and were sent to
the relevant state or territory government contacts for a response and/or supporting
documentation.
Assessments were undertaken and recorded individually by Panel members and brought
forward for discussion at two separate Panel meetings. From these discussions, the Panel agreed
to a short list of eligible projects.
Panel members provided the Department with scoring of the projects against an assessment
matrix. A weighted score was generated for each project using an agreed formula.
The Civil, Commercial and Employment Law Branch within the Department, reviewed the
assessment process for the Program and advised that sufficient steps were takenthroughout the
assessment process to mitigate probity and assurance risks.
Further information about the assessment process has been provided in AttachmentA.

Benefits of the Bundaberg Flood Levee

15.

The Panel discussed the merits, risks and issues associated with the levee, but noted in particular
that:

e therewould likely be significant future avoided recovery costs for the Commonwealth and
communities more broadly, noting the Australian Government has funded more than half of
Queensland’s eligible recovery costs under the DRFA since the 2010-11 floods and Tropical
Cyclone Yasi—the economic cost to buildings caused by of a flood event in the areais
estimated by Queensland to be between $55 million — $182 million depending on the scale
of the event.

e therewasa clear commitment to the project from the Queensland Government, supported
by significant co-contribution at half the cost (542.5 million of the $85 million project).
Among other things, this demonstrated the likelihood the project would be successful.

e construction of the levee was assessed as highly likely to reduce the risk and impact of flood
events for over 600 buildings, mitigate damage andthe risk of loss of life, and have a
positive impact on both insurability and insurance premiums.

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
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OFFICIAL: Sensitive

e the evidence provided by Queensland indicated significant community consultation and
support for the project.

e the levee has been designed to ensure that its construction will not increase flooding risk or
impacts elsewhere, including on properties not protected by it or on properties upriver
from the levee.

e Funding from other Commonwealth infrastructure, risk reduction or recovery programs was
deemed inappropriate or insufficient for this project.

e the project is reasonably expectedto support local jobs.
Risks and Sensitivities

16. On 27 November 2020 and 15 March 2021, the Deputy Premier of Queensland wrote to the
Deputy Prime Minister in his capacity as the Minister for Infrastructure requesting
Commonwealth funding for the levee. On 21 April 2021, the Deputy Prime Minister responded
and noted that the project had been submitted to the Program for consideration and confirming
that there wasno other funding programin the Department of Infrastructure, Transport,
Regional Development and Communications for this type of project AttachmentC.

17. The Director General EMA’s advice in MS21-000705 is based on the assessment of the Panel,
and on the information provided by the applicant. The panel did not review any material from
individuals or groups opposing the project.

Other state mitigation plans for Bundaberg

18. The Bundaberg 10-Year Action Plan is comprised of four proposed mitigation activities, including
the levee. The levee has been determined to be the most beneficial mitigation option to protect
and mitigate against flood. The four options included in the 10-Year Action Plan are independent
of eachother AttachmentD.

19. The options were developed from an original list of 11 options and involved extensive
community input to their review and assessment.

Consultation

20. The Department hasengaged with the Queensland Government throughout the Program’s
application and assessment processes.

21. Representativesfrom the Department of the Prime Minister and Cabinet, Department of
Finance, The Treasury, Department of Infrastructure, Transport, Regional Development and
Communications, the National Drought and North Queensland Flood Response and Recovery
Agency (NDNQFRRA), and the Bureau of Meteorology were all members of the Panel.

Sensitivities

22. In accordance with our long standing practices, should you wish for unclassified media lines to
be prepared in relation to this issue please contact the Home Affairs Media Coordination team —
media@homeaffairs.gov.au.

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
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OFFICIAL: Sensitive

Authorising Officer

Contact Officer

Joe Buffone PSM
Director General
Emergency Management Australia

30/04 /2021

ph: S22

Mark Dominick
Assistant Secretary,
Disaster Preparedness Branch

ph: SHE2EIEW

CcC Minister for Home Affairs
Secretary

A/g Deputy Secretary, Emergency Management and Coordination Group

Group Manager Legal
Chief Finance Officer

Assistant Secretary Disaster Risk Reduction Branch
Assistant Secretary Disaster Recovery Branch

OFFICIAL: Sensitive
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The Hon Michael McCormack MP

Deputy Prime Minister
Minister for Infrastructure, Transport and Regional Development
Leader of The Nationals
Federal Member for Riverina
Ref: MC21-002031

71 APR 2071
Dr Steven Miles MP
Deputy Premier
Minister for Main Roads, Road Safety and Ports
Queensland Government
GPO Box 2644
BRISBANE QLD 4001

Steven

Dear Depu}g/éemier

Thank you for your letters of 27 November 2020 and 15 March 2021, supporting the
construction of the Bundaberg Flood Levee in the Bundaberg Region. [ appreciate you
highlighting the significance of this project and its potential economic and community
benefits.

I understand that the Queensland Government submitted an application for funding under
Emergency Management Australia’s National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program. I look
forward to hearing the outcome for this application.

Unfortunately, there are no other programs open in the Department of Infrastructure,
Transport, Regional Development and Communications for funding for this type of project.
You may wish to advise officers in your Department to monitor the GrantConnect website at
www.grants.gov.au, which provides details of all Australian Government grant opportunities.

Thank you again for your advocacy and I trust this information is of assistance.
Yours sincerely

/b‘-C/'/t// /‘*4—”"@

Michael McCormack

The Hon Michael McCormack MP
Parliament House Canberra| (02) 6277 7520 | minister.mccormack@infrastructure.gov.au 58
Suite 2, 11-15 Fitzmaurice Street, Wagga Wagga NSW 2650 | michael.mccormack.mp@aph.gov.au
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_ Submission

Australian Government o
: For decision
g7~ Department of Home Affairs PDMS Ref. Number: M$21-001012

Date of Clearance: 07/05/2021

To Minister for Agriculture, Drought and Emergency Management

Subject National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program — Bundaberg Flood
Levee application, and options to mitigate potential risks

Timing Your decision on the 2020-21 National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program is
sought by no later than 12 May 2021, to enable grant agreements and signed
determinations to be prepared and lodged with the Department of Finance by 4 June.

Recommendations
That you:

1. note that, while the proposed Bundaberg Flood Levee was noted / please discuss
highly rated by the 2020-21 National Flood Mitigation
Infrastructure Program Review Panel, recent media
reporting indicates that the project is not supported by
some members of the Bundaberg community;

2. note the advice at Attachment A on risks associated with noted / please discuss
the Bundaberg Flood Levee, which was provided to your
office on 30 April 2021;

3. note that it is open to you to make funding for the noted / please discuss
Bundaberg Flood Levee conditional on Queensland’s
assurance that these risks will be appropriately mitigated;
and

noted / please discuss

Minister for Agriculture, Drought and Emergency Management

Signature...........cccooeeeeeieceeeee Date.:....../......./ 2021
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Minister’'s Comments

Rejected | Timely Relevance Length Quality
Yes/No | Yes/No | O Highly relevant O Toolong Poor 1.....2.....3.....4....5 Excellent
O Significantly O Right length Comments:
relevant O Too brief

O Not relevant

Key Issues

1. On 12 April 2021, the Department of Home Affairs (the Department) presented you with
recommendations for projects to fund under the 2020-21 National Flood Mitigation
Infrastructure Program (the Program) — MS21-000705 refers. These recommendations were
based on an assessment of applications undertaken by an interdepartmental Program Review
Panel (the Panel).

2. State and Territory Governments, in consultation with Local Governments and communities,
were eligible to apply for funding under the Program. In total, 74 applications with a
combined value of $232 million were received, with all States and Territories applying for
funding.

3. Ofthe 74 applications received, 20 were shortlisted by the panel as being highly eligible for
funding under the Program. The project ranked highest by the Panel was the Bundaberg
Flood Levee, for which Queensland has sought a funding contribution from the
Commonwealth of $42.5 million.

4. On 21 April 2021, your office requested information on potential risks attached to the
Bundaberg Flood Levee proposal. Following the receipt of further information from the
Queensland Reconstruction Authority (QRA), advice was provided to your office on
28 April 2021, and included in a Background Brief, lodged with your office on 30 April 2021.
(Attachment A). On 6 May 2021, your office requested a further submission outlining options
to mitigate potential risks in the event you award funding to the Bundaberg Flood Levee
proposal — this advice is presented below.

5. Asnoted in the Background Brief, recent media reports indicate that there is some opposition
to the proposed Levee in the Bundaberg community. For example, an ABC News article of
26 Apr 2021 states that ‘The Bundaberg community has not unanimously supported the levee’.
Based on these media reports, opposition to the levee appears to stem mostly from residents
and businesses in some parts of Bundaberg that will not be protected by the levee.
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6. The Department sought clarification from the QRA on community attitudes towards the levee.
In its response, the QRA noted that consultations on the project were conducted in 2016 and
2018. Based on information provided by QRA, the consultations appear to have been
extensive, and included correspondence sent to about 600 owners of properties in Bundaberg
North, community information meetings, a dedicated website, an information hotline and
advertisements placed in the local media.

7. The Department is unaware of the extent of concerns about the Bundaberg Levee proposal in
the Bundaberg community, and the assessment of the Panel was based on the information
supplied by the applicant, which was generally positive and indicated a broad level of
community support. The panel also relied on information supplied by QRA that the proposed
levee has been designed to ensure that its construction will not make flooding worse
elsewhere.

8. Noting the aforementioned media reports, however, there does appear to be some level of
community concern about the project, and it is open to you to weigh whether these concerns,
and the risks which underpin them, have been sufficiently addressed in deciding on the
application.

Options to mitigate potential risks with the Bundaberg Levee proposal

9.

levee to 2021-22. The

10. Itis also open to you to defer a decision on funding for the Bundaber

11.

It is also likely that your decision to not proceed with funding the Bundaberg
levee at the present time would be criticised by proponents of the project.

Next Steps

12. Following your decision on the projects to be funded under the 2020-21 Program, the
Department will work with State and Territory Governments to develop bilateral grant
agreements.
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13. Your decision on the Program is sought at the earliest opportunity, and no later than

12 May 2021. SEATC(E)N—

Background

14. In accordance with the Emergency Response Fund Act 2019 (the Act) (Section 20 (1)(c)-(f)) the
ERF may be used to provide a grant of financial assistance to carry out a project that is
directed towards achieving resilience to, preparedness for, or a reduction of risk of future
disasters, or the long-term sustainability of a community in an area that is at risk of being
affected by a natural disaster. Section 34 of the Act prescribes an annual limit of $50 million
which may be drawn from the Emergency Response Fund each financial year for this purpose.

Consultation — internal/external

17. The Queensland Reconstruction Authority was consulted on the potential risks associated
with the Bundaberg Flood Levee project.

18. Legal Division within the Department of Home Affairs were consulted on the development of
this submission.

Consultation — Secretary
19. The Secretary was not consulted on the approach in the submission.
Sensitivities

20. The release of the Australian National Audit Office Report ‘Award of Funding under the
Community Sport Infrastructure Program’ on 15 January 2020 has brought increased scrutiny
to the awarding of government grants. It is likely that a decision to fund projects that are not
recommended by the Director General EMA or not in the merit order as assessed by the Panel
would be open to scrutiny.

21. In accordance with our long standing practices, should you wish for unclassified media lines to
be prepared in relation to this issue please contact the Home Affairs Media Coordination
team — media@homeaffairs.gov.au.
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Financial/systems/legislation/deregulation/media implications

22. There has been recent media interest in the Emergency Response Fund, and the outcomes of
this program are expected to receive media coverage.

Attachments

Attachment A  Background Brief — National Flood Mitigation Infrastructure Program —
Bundaberg Flood Levee Application (MB21 000558)

Authorising Officer

Cleared by:

Joe Buffone
Director General
Emergency Management Australia

Date: 07/05/2021
Mob:

Contact Officer Mark Dominick, Assistant Secretary, Disaster Preparedness Branch, _

cc Minister for Home Affairs
Secretary
Deputy Secretary, Emergency Management and Coordination
Group Manager Legal
Chief Finance Officer
Assistant Secretary Disaster Risk Reduction
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From:

To: Joe BUFFONE

Subject: FW: ERF Flood Mitigation Program submission [SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]
Date: Monday, 10 May 2021 4:52:26 PM

Attachments: ERF Submission with Attachment A only.pdf

PROTECTED//CABINET

FYl Joe —signed ERF sub with Attachment A only to show the Minister’s selected projects.

PROTECTED//CABINET
From: S22

Sent: Monday, 10 May 2021 4:23 PM

To: Mark DOMINICK ; SH22(@)(@)ii)
Ce:s. 22()(@)@)

Subject: ERF Flood Mitigation Program submission [SEC=PROTECTED, CAVEAT=SH:CABINET]

PROTECTED//CABINET

Hi Mark,

Attached is the signed submission with the Minister’s nominated projects — numbers 2-20, and
23-25.

As the Minister wants to announce this ASAP today, grateful if you could you please put a quick
phone call in to the states and territories informally notifying them of their approved projects.
We have asked for the media release to be with the MO by 1630 as he won’t be available after
1700 for approval.

-(our new DLO) will send the submission back formally through PDMS once we have the
updated letter to the PM signed off.

Any issues please give us a bell.

Cheers,

Office of the Hon. David Littleproud MP
Minister for Agriculture, Drought & Emergency Management

T SHZ2NEN) | v STZZE) | - SRR e cov o
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